RECEIVED

04-17-2014

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT 2

Appeal No. 14-AP-349-CR

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

PENNY S. ROSENDAHL,

Defendant-Appellant.

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT RENDERED ON DECEMBER 13, 2013 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY The Honorable Thomas J. Gritton, Presiding Trial Court Case No. 13-CT-1076

Respectfully submitted:

Earl J. Luaders Attorney for Defendant-Appellant 213 W. North Water Street P.O. Box 306 New London, WI 54961

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The defendant-appellant filed a motion for suppression of evidence alleging that the Sheriff's Deputy lacked probable cause to arrest her for operating while intoxicated. The Circuit Court denied the defendant-appellant's suppression motion.

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

The defendant-appellant is not requesting oral argument or publication.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a case where the defendant-appellant was stopped by a Winnebago County Sheriff's Deputy on suspicion of operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated. The defendant-appellant filed a suppression motion which was denied by the Circuit Court. The defendant-appellant then entered a plea of no contest to operating while intoxicated, second offense. The Circuit Court then sentenced the defendant but stayed the imposition of the sentence pending the outcome of the appeal. On October 26, 2013 at about 11:36 P.M. a Winnebago County Sheriff's Deputy saw the defendant's vehicle exit a bar parking lot. The vehicle pulled out in front of the deputy while the deputy was turning around a corner, making a righthand turn just before the location of the parking lot driveway. The deputy's impression was that the driver of the vehicle may not have seen him and pulled out in front of him so that he had to apply his brakes heavily to avoid a collision. (5:18-20; A-AP 101) The deputy testified that he thought perhaps the person did not see him. (5:24; A-AP 101)

The deputy then followed the defendant-appellant's vehicle for a period of time, alleging that the vehicle was deviating within its own lane of traffic. He further indicated that he observed the vehicle come over and make contact with the center line on a couple of occasions and make contact and slightly cross the centerline into the oncoming lane of traffic. The officer further testified that his dash video was in operation during this time. He further indicated that it was on the basis of these operations that he decided to stop the defendant-appellant's vehicle. (6:3-12; A-AP 102)

ARGUMENT

The Sheriff's Deputy, when testifying about his initial contact with Penny Rosendahl's vehicle, indicated that he did not choose to stop the vehicle after it exited the bar driveway. He felt that the person just didn't see him or there was a misunderstanding. (5:22-25; A-AP 101) He further indicated that he chose to turn around and just investigate further. This is the point at which Exhibit 1, the squad car video, becomes relevant. A review of Exhibit 1 reveals that Penny Rosendahl drove in a very controlled, straight path in her lane of traffic. She did not cross the center line. She may, and I stress "may", have touched the centerline with her vehicle as she chose the path within her own lane, closer to the centerline than to the fog line but there was no drifting or weaving. It appeared from the video that the speed of

Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle remained constant and it appears inconclusive as to whether the vehicle actually touched the centerline.

A review of Exhibit 1 reveals no weaving or drifting and only the very slightest of deviation from a straight line path of driving. Further review of the squad car video shows a vehicle approaching and passing from the opposite lane. The approaching vehicle did not, nor did it need to, take any evasive action as Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle was within her lane of traffic during the approach of the vehicle in the opposite lane of traffic.

The standard of review for the Court has been well-established in the case law. It is as follows: "Whether an arrest was supported by probable cause is a question of constitutional fact, <u>State v. Secrist</u> 224 Wis. 2d 201, 208, 589 N.W. 2d 387 (1999). Questions of constitutional fact present a mixed question of fact and law; we review the trial court's factual finding under the clearly erroneous standard, but review the application of those facts to constitutional principles independently. <u>State v. Post</u>. 2007 WI 60, 301 Wis. 2d 1, 733 N.W. 2d 634. Because the facts here are undisputed, we address only the question of law of whether the facts supported probable cause, which we review de novo."

When reviewing the facts, the issue here is whether the deputy had probable cause to stop Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle. Again, the principle probable cause under these circumstances has been well established and that is to "determine whether probable cause to arrest exists, the Court looks at the totality of the circumstances to determine whether the arresting officer's knowledge at the time of the arrest would lead a reasonable police officer to believe that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle under the influence of an intoxicant." <u>State v. Nordness</u>, 128 Wis. 2d 15, 35, 381, N.W. 2d 300 (1986).

In this particular case, the defendant-appellant submits that a review of Exhibit 1 did not present circumstances which would give the deputy reasonable cause to believe that Ms. Rosendahl was operating her vehicle while intoxicated, considering both Exhibit 1 and the testimony of the deputy at the time of the motion to suppress as it relates to the initial contact between the deputy and Ms. Rosendahl when she pulled out of the driveway of the bar.

CONCLUSION

The Circuit Court's Order denying the defendant-appellant's motion to suppress should be reversed.