RECEIVED

05-19-2014

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT II

STATE OF WISCONSIN, Plaintiff-Respondent,

Case No. 2014 AP 349 CR

PENNY S. ROSENDAHL, Defendant-Appellant.

v.

BRIEF & APPENDIX OF PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

ON NOTICE OF APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION ENTERED JANUARY 15, 2014 IN THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT BRANCH ONE

The Honorable Thomas J. Gritton, Presiding

Christian A. Gossett District Attorney State Bar No. 1040212 Attorneys for Plaintiff-Appellant

Anthony S. Prekop Assistant District Attorney State Bar No. 1088897

Winnebago County District Atty's Office 448 Algoma Boulevard Oshkosh, WI 54901 (920) 236-4977

STATEMENT OF ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Whether Sheriff's Deputy Zill had reasonable suspicion to believe Ms. Rosendahl was committing a violation of a traffic or criminal law so as to stop her vehicle.

The trial court decided that Deputy Zill articulated reasonable suspicion to conduct a traffic stop.

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

The State is requesting neither publication nor oral argument as this matter involves application of well-settled law to the facts of this case.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State finds Ms. Rosendahl's recitation of the case facts to be sufficient, and pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 809.19(3)(a)(2), omits a repetitive statement of the case.

ARGUMENT

Deputy Zill articulated sufficient facts to demonstrate a reasonable suspicion that Ms. Rosendahl had committed a traffic violation for failure to yield and articulated a reasonable suspicion that she was committing a crime of operating while under the influence of an intoxicant. As such, Deputy Zill's stop of Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle was lawful, and any evidence gathered pursuant to that stop is not subject to the exclusionary rule.

The Fourth Amendment provides that "[t]he right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause" U.S. Const. amend. IV.

Temporary detention of an individual during a stop of a vehicle by police is a seizure for the purposes of the Fourth Amendment. *State v. Popke*, 2009 WI 37, ¶11, 317 Wis. 2d 118, 765 N.W.2d 569. Such investigative stops are subject to the constitutional reasonableness requirement, and the State carries the burden to demonstrate that such a stop is reasonable. *State v. Post*, 2007 WI 60, ¶12, 301 Wis. 2d 1, 733 N.W.2d 634; *Popke*, 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶11. However, a stop is reasonable "if the officers have probable cause to believe that a traffic violation has occurred or have grounds to reasonably suspect a violation has been or will be committed." *Popke*, 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶11.

The test for reasonableness is one of common sense and is determined based on the totality of the circumstances. *Post*, 301 Wis. 2d 1, ¶13. "The crucial question is whether the facts of the case would warrant a

reasonable police officer, in light of his or her training and experience, to suspect that the individual has committed, was committing, or is about to commit a crime." *Id.* The officer "must be able to point to specific and articuable facts which, taken together with rational inferences from those facts, reasonably warrant the intrusion of the stop." *Id.*, ¶10. The officer need not necessarily have probable cause to make an arrest in order to conduct an investigative stop. *Popke*, 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶23. "This common sense approach balances the interests of the State in detecting, preventing, and investigating crime and the rights of individuals to be free from unreasonable intrusions." *Post*, 301 Wis. 2d 1, ¶13.

I. Deputy Zill Had a Reasonable Articuable Suspicion to Stop Ms. Rosendahl Based on Her Failure to Yield Traffic Violation

In this case, Deputy Zill had a reasonable articuable suspicion that a traffic violation had occurred, specifically, failure to yield the right-of-way

pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 346.18(4), which states:

Entering Highway From Alley or Nonhighway Access. The operator of a vehicle entering a highway from an alley or from a point of access other than another highway shall yield the right-of-way to all vehicles approaching on the highway which the operator is entering.

At the motion hearing, Deputy Zill articulated that he was making a right-hand turn onto County Trunk II, at which time he observed a vehicle driven by Ms. Rosendahl pulling out of a bar parking lot driveway. (R. 27 (record):5 (page); A (Appendix) 5.) Deputy Zill stated that as he was making the right-hand turn, Ms. Rosendahl pulled out in front of him and Deputy Zill "had to apply [his] brakes heavily so [he] could avoid a collision." (R. 27:5; A5.)

Based on these facts, Deputy Zill had probable cause to believe a traffic violation had occurred and probable cause to conduct a traffic stop of Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle. As provided in *Popke*, where the facts of the case would warrant a reasonable officer to suspect that the individual has committed a traffic violation based on the totality of the facts and circumstances, the stop of that vehicle is reasonable. *Popke*, 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶¶ 13, 17. That Deputy Zill did not actually conduct an immediate traffic stop is not at issue as the determination for the reasonableness of the stop hinges on whether evidence existed to lead a reasonable police officer to believe a traffic violation has occurred. Because Deputy Zill had probable cause to believe the traffic violation occurred, he had probable cause to stop Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle.

II. Deputy Zill Had Reasonable Suspicion That Ms. Rosendahl Was Operating Under the Influence of an Intoxicant

Further, Deputy Zill stated sufficient facts at the motion hearing to articulate reasonable suspicion that Ms. Rosendahl was operating while under the influence of an intoxicant, based on the totality of the circumstances.

In this case, Ms. Rosendahl was pulling out of a bar parking lot. (R. 27:5; A5.) The time was 11:36 p.m. (R. 27:4-5; A4-5.) Deputy Zill observed the instance of Ms. Rosendahl failing to yield the right-of-way pulling out onto the highway. (R. 27:5; A5.) He further observed instances of Ms. Rosendahl deviating within her own lane of traffic and observed her make contact with the center line. (R. 27:6; A6.) Deputy Zill also observed that "on a couple occasions [Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle] made contact and slightly crossed the center line in the oncoming lane of traffic." (R. 27:6; A6.)

Similar to the facts present in *Post* or *Popke*, these facts, when viewed under the totality of the circumstances, give rise to the level of reasonable suspicion for Deputy Zill to conduct an investigatory stop. As the trial court in this case stated:

[t]he officer testified that [sic] turned right onto II to go east. A vehicle pulled out of the bar parking lot. He had to apply his brakes as a result of that and turned around to follow the vehicle. I don't think in the circumstances in the video that there is any significant bad driving. As I did indicate, though, it looked like the vehicle at least touched the center line in those three places I indicated, and I think the officer had the right, even though he decided not to, just from the pulling out of the parking lot alone to pull her over so under those circumstances I'm going to deny the motion.

(R. 27:16-17; A16-17.)

While Ms. Rosendahl seems to stress that her driving was not significantly poor and points to potential instances of good driving, those single factors alone do not negate the Deputy's other observations. As stated in *Popke*, "while any one of these facts, standing alone, might well be insufficient for reasonable suspicion, when such facts accumulate, and as they accumulate, reasonable inferences about the cumulative effect can be drawn." 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶25 (internal citations omitted). In this case, under the totality of the circumstances, including the time of day, Ms. Rosendahl's departure from a bar, failure to yield, and lane deviations, the officer had reasonable suspicion to conduct a stop.

Notably, Ms. Rosendahl conflates the standards of reasonable suspicion and probable cause throughout her brief. Further, Ms. Rosendahl conflates the issues of probable cause to arrest with reasonable suspicion to stop her vehicle. As noted at the motion hearing, Ms. Rosendahl challenged the constitutionality of the traffic stop, and such statement and hearing should limit the parameters of this Court's review to that stop. Further, probable cause is not required for a traffic stop. "Even if no probable cause existed, a police officer may still conduct a traffic stop when, under the totality of the circumstances, he or she has grounds to reasonably suspect that a crime or traffic violation has been or will be committed." *Popke*, 317 Wis. 2d 118, ¶23.

Deputy Zill observed and articulated sufficient facts to justify a stop of Ms. Rosendahl's vehicle. Ms. Rosendahl was pulling out of a bar parking lot near bar time. As the trial court found, Ms. Rosendahl's failure to yield the right-of-way to Deputy Zill should in and of itself justify a traffic stop. Further, those facts coupled with Deputy Zill's observations regarding Ms. Rosendahl's driving and touching the center line justifies an investigative stop to determine Ms. Rosendahl's condition.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, Deputy Zill's stop of Ms. Rosendahl was lawful, and any evidence gathered subsequent to that stop should not be subject to the exclusionary rule.